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The transcript constitutes the mnutes fromthe
Regul ar Public Meeting held on February 11, 2026.
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P-ROGCEEDI-NGS
(9:38 a.m)

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Let's get started.
If the recording is going, then we'll begin. The
Board of Zoning Adjustnment's February 11th, 2026
public hearing will please cone to order. M nane is
Carl Bl ake, Chair of the District of Colunbia Board of
Zoning Adjustnment. Joining ne today are Board Menbers
Brittney Drakeford representing the National Capital
Pl anni ng Conm ssi on and Zoni ng Conm ssi oners Tanmy
Stidham Gaen Wight, Rob MIler and Dr. Joe | manura.

Today's neeting and hearing agenda are
avail able on the Ofice of Zoning' s website.

Pl ease be advised that this proceeding is
bei ng recorded by a court reporter and is al so webcast
live via Wbex and YouTube Live. The video of the
webcast will be available on the Ofice of Zoning's
website after today's hearing. Accordingly, everyone
who is listening on Wbex or by tel ephone wll be
muted during the hearing. If you experience
difficulty accessing Webex or your telephone call-ins,
then please call our OZ hotline nunber at 202-727-
5471, to receive WebEx login or call-in instructions.

Today, we wll begin with our decision

meeting session and then proceed with our public
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hearing session. Please be advised that we do not
take any public testinony at our decision nmeeting
session. Public testinmony will be received during the
public hearing session; however, in appeals, only
parties are allowed to testify.

At the conclusion of a decision neeting, |
wll, in consultation with the Ofice of Zoning,
determ ne whether a full or summary order may be
Issued. A full order is required when the decision it
contains is adverse to a party, including an affected
ANC. A full order may al so be needed if the Board's
decision differs from the Ofice of Planning's
recommendation. Although the Board favors the use of
sunmary orders whenever possible, an Applicant may not
request the Board to issue such an order.

I n today's hearing session, everybody who is
i stening on Webex or by tel ephone will be nuted
during the hearing, and only persons who have signed
up to participate or testify will be unnuted at the
appropriate time. Please state your nane and hone
address before providing oral testinmony or your
presentation,

Oral presentations should be limted to a
summary of your nost inportant points. Wen you're

fini shed speaking, please nute your audio so that your
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m crophone is no | onger picking up sound or background
noi se. Once again, if you experience difficulty
accessi ng WebEx or with your tel ephone call-in, or you
have forgotten to sign up 24 hours prior to this
meeting, then please dial our OQZ hotline nunber at
202-727-5471 to sign up to testify and to receive
WebEx login or call-in instructions.

Al persons planning to testify either in
favor or in opposition should have signed up in
advance, they wll be called by nanme to testify. By
signing up to testify, all participants conpleted the
oath or affirmation as required by Subtitle Y Section
408. 7.

Requests to enter evidence at the tinme of an
online virtual hearing, such as witten testinony or
addi tional supporting docunents, other than Ilive
vi deo, which nmay not be presented as part of the
testimony, nmay be allowed pursuant to Subtitle Y
Section 103.13. The order of procedure for special
exceptions and variances are pursuant to Subtitle Y
Section 409. The order of procedure for appeals are
pursuant to Subtitle Y Section 507. Tinme constraints
shal | be maintained pursuant to Subtitle Y Section
408. 2 and 408. 3.

At the conclusion of each case, an individual

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealgross.com



https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o B~ W N PP

N N NN NN P PP R R PR R PR
g A W N P O © 0O N O 0o M W N P O

who was unable to testify because of technical issues
may file a request to | eave the record open to file a
witten version of their planned testinony to the
record within 24 hours follow ng the concl usion of
public testinony in the hearing.

|f additional witten testinony is accepted,
then the parties will be allowed a reasonable tine to
respond as determ ned by the Board. The Board wl|
then nmake a decision at its next neeting session, but
no earlier than 48 hours after the hearing. At the
concl usion of the hearing, the Board may request
additional specific information to conplete the
record. The Board and the staff wll specify at the
end of the hearing exactly what's expected and the
date when the person nust submt the evidence to the
Ofice of Zoning. No other information wll be
accepted by the Board.

Once again, after the Board adjourns the
hearing, the Ofice of Zoning in consultation with the
Chair, will determ ne whether a full or summary order
may be issued, a full order is required when the
deci sion obtained is adverse to a party, including
affected ANCs. A full order may be al so be needed if
the Board's decision differs fromthe Ofice of

Pl anni ng' s recomendation. Mreover, the Board may
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request additional specific information to conplete
t he record.

Al t hough the Board favors the use of summary
orders whenever possible, again, an Applicant nmay not
request the Board to issue such an order.

Final ly, the District of Col unbi a
Adm ni strative Procedures Act requires that a public
hearing on each case be held in the open before the
public. However, pursuant to Sections 405(b) and 406
of that Act, the Board may, consistent with its rules
and procedures and the Act, enter into a cl osed
meeting for purposes of seeking |egal counsel on a
case pursuant to D.C Oficial Code Section 2-
575(b) (4) and/or deliberate on a case pursuant to D.C
Oficial Code Section 2-575(b)(13), but only after
provi di ng necessary public notice, and in the case of
an energency closed neeting, after taking a roll call
vote. Madam Secretary, do we have any prelimnary
matters?

M5. MEHLERT: Good norning, M. Chairnman,
Menbers of the Board. The prelimnary matters for
today, since the February 4th hearing | ast week was
cancel ed, | wanted to announce just some schedul e
changes for a few cases that were originally schedul ed

for that day.
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Application No. 21406 of Consys, Inc. has
been postponed from February 4th to Mrch 4th.
Application No. 21405 of Azanach Haile has been
adm nistratively reschedul ed from February 4th to
March 18th. Application No. 21402 of 1724 H ST NE,
LLC was postponed from February 4th to April 1st.

Regarding late filings, the Chairnman has
reviewed and granted waivers to allow late filings
into the applicable case records pursuant to Subtitle
Y Section 206.7 and Section 103.13, any of the late
filings during the course of today's hearing should be
presented for a report by the Applicant, parties or
W tnesses after the case is called. Any other
prelimnary matters will be noted when the case is
cal | ed.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you, Madam
Secretary. Wuld you call our first neeting session
agenda itenf

M5. MEHLERT: The first itemin the Board's
meeting session is Application No. 21360 of M &

Pot omac Streets Associates. As anended, this is a
self-certified application pursuant to Subtitle X
Section 1002 for area variances. The lot area
requi renents of Subtitle D Section 202.1; Iot

occupancy requirenents of Subtitle D Section 210.1;
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the rear yard requirenents of Subtitle D Section
207.1; and, the side yard requirements of Subtitle D
Section 1104.1.

This is for a principal dwelling, a new
detached building located in the RWGI zone at
Prospect Street NW Square 1206, Lot 832. This
heari ng began on Cctober 29th and was conpl eted on
January 21st. The Board is schedul ed for decision
January 28th and postponed the decision to February
11th, which was then adm nistratively reschedul ed for
February 25t h.

Participating are Chairman Blake, Board
Menber Drakeford and Conm ssioner Wight and before
the Board today is the Applicant's request to reopen
the record in Exhibit 54.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you, Madam
Secretary. As the Secretary stated, we have had two
| engt hy hearings on this matter both in October and in
January and we did deliberate -- began deli berations,
at least, on January 28th at our neeting session, but
we weren't able to reach a consensus. | nean that's
basically just to get three votes in order to either
approve or deny the application.

As the Secretary pointed out, this decision

was ultimtely continued until the February 25th

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N O o A W DN

N R N I T N R S e N R N T o o
o b~ W N b O © 00 N oo 0o~ N+ O

meeting to really allow the board nenbers to consider
the merits of the case nore fully. The record, at
this point, remains closed and the Board has not
requested any additional information. The Applicant
has subsequently filed a formal request to reopen the
record, which the Secretary pointed out is in Exhibit
54 to revise the application to elimnate the side
yard relief.

Now, |I'm inclined to grant the request
because the supplenental materials may be hel pful to
the Board. (bviously, we've gone back and forth with
this for a while and this nmay be actually a very
hel pful piece of information. |f we reopen the
record, we'll then have to notify all the parties --
that is the ANC as well as party in opposition of the

acceptance of the supplenental materials and we'l]l
have to allow at | east seven days for these parties to
submt a response about the revised application and
any supplenental materials.

|'mgoing to just go around real quick wth
the Board and just see if anyone has any objections to
me reopening the record. Let's see, Comm ssioner
Wi ght?

COW SSI ONER WRI GHT:  No, | have no objection

to reopening the record.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, Board Menber
Dr akef or d?

MEMBER DRAKEFCRD: | have no objections to
reopeni ng the record.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: (Ckay, great, Madam
Secretary, we'll then reopen the record for the
material s and
suppl enental materials. Now, also we have currently
schedul ed a decision neeting for this for February
25th.  Now, since we've agreed to reopen the record, |
woul d propose noving the application fromthe neeting
session to the hearing session on the 25th and conduct
a limted scope hearing covering the relief requested
i n the anended application. Al so, |look at the
suppl enmental materials received and any responses from
the parties about the anended application.

|'mgoing to ook at ny board nenbers and see
I f you woul d be confortable with that.

COW SSI ONER WRI GHT:  Yes, | agree.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay. Board Menber
Dr akef or d?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: Yes, |'m confortable,.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Great. Gkay. Madam
Secretary, what would be the tinme line for responses

for the ANC, party in opposition, Ofice of Planning,
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etc. to be back here on the 25th?

M5. MEHLERT: We will notify parties today
about the Board's decision to reopen the record. |If
responses to the supplenental material that was sent
by the Applicant could be due by next Thursday,
February 19th, and then you' d be back for a public
hearing on the 25th.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, that sounds
good. Based on that, I"'mgoing to nake a notion to
conduct a Ilimted scope hearing addressing the
amendnents proposed in the suppl enental naterial and
ask for a second. Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: Second.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay. The notion is
made and seconded. Madam Secretary, would you pl ease
conduct a roll call vote?

MS. MEHLERT: Respond to the Chair's notion
to reopen the hearing for a limted scope hearing,
February 25th. Chairman Bl ake?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Conm ssioner Wight?

COW SSI ONER WRI GHT:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Staff report the vote as 3 to O

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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to 2 to hold alimted scope hearing in Application
No. 21360 on the notion made by Chairman Bl ake and
seconded by Board Menber Drakeford.

VI CE CHAlI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, thank you very
much. Just to be clear, alimted scope hearing is
schedul ed for February 25th, the record is open for
coments and we will be taking public testinmony from
all parties and the public at that tine, but be clear,
t he scope of the hearing will be limted to the issues
associated with the anendnents proposed in the
suppl ement material. For efficiency, it's a very
thick record. W' ve had two full hearings on this.

We don't need to revisit all the other issues.

Ckay, Madam Secretary, would you pl ease cal
our first decision case?

COW SSI ONER WRI GHT:  Thank you, |'mready to
exit. Have a good day.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ch, okay, fine,
fine.

COW SSI ONER WRI GHT:  Bye- bye.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: |'m sorry.

MS. MEHLERT: Next, in the Board's neeting
session is Application No. 21381 of the Institute of
Cari bbean Studi es. This is a self-certified

application pursuant to Subtitle X Section 901.2 for a

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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speci al exception wunder Subtitle J Section 200,
transition setback requirements; of Subtitle J Section
210, and pursuant to Subtitle X Section 1002 for a new
variance from Subtitle U Section 801 to allow a new
residential use. This is for a third-story and three-
story rear addition to an existing two-story building
for use as an office on the first floor and two
dwelling units on the second and third fl oors.

It's located in the PDR-1 zone at 1106 3rd
Street NE, Square 0748, Lots 72 and 824. This was
heard on Decenber 3rd and the Board requested
subm ssions fromthe Applicant about the inpacts as
wel |l as submtting a response fromthe adjacent owner.

Participating are Chairman Bl ake and Dr.
| mmura and | believe Board Menber Drakeford has read
into the record.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you very nuch,
Madam Secretary. |'mjust going to kind of recap
where we are and then talk on to the deliberations.
The Applicant proposed to add a third story and a
three-story rear addition to an existing two-story
building located in the PRD-1 zone. The conpl et ed
building will include nonprofit office space on the
ground floor and two two-bedroomresidential units

above, one on the second floor and one on the third

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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floor. The property has been vacant for nearly a
decade and was required by the District and the
Depart nment of Housing Community Devel opment Property
Acqui sition and Di sposition Program

They essentially require the new devel opnent
and residential use including a provision of two
affordabl e units for a 40-year period. Wile the
office use is permtted in the matter of right in the
PDR-1 zone, residential use is not permtted. So, the
Applicant is seeking a use variance to allow the two
dwel I'ings. Al so, because the adjacent property is a
residential building, the Applicant is seeking relief
fromthe transition setback requirenment of Subtitle J
Section 210.

| viewed this as a fairly straightforward
application, but some concerns were raised in the
hearing regarding the potential inpacts of an adjacent
solar installation in a residential zone, which |ead
the Board to postpone its decision. Based on the
current record, it appears that the issues that were
rai sed have been now resolved. | think we'll nove on.

| believe the Applicant has net the burden of
proof for both areas of requested relief. Wth
respect to the use variance, the evidence in record

clearly denbnstrates an exception situation or

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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condi tion driven by a confluence of three factors:
The building's historical residential formdating back
to 1896. The physical constraints of a very narrow
PDR zone |ot. Most inportantly, the binding
Departnment of Housing and Comunity Devel opnent
covenant requiring the delivery of a nonprofit office
space and two afford home ownership units.

| want to be clear, | do not view the |oss of
residential rights resulting from the prolonged
vacancy as an exceptional condition as the Applicant
argued. That's because the rights |apsed during the
owner's di scontinuance of a disfavored non-conform ng
use, not because of any inherent or unusual condition
of the property.

Coming to the second prong, undue hardship.
The record shows that the strict application of PDR-1
zone regul ations would make it inpossible for the
Applicant to neet these requirenents under its |egal
obligation and the DHC i nposed restraints. No matter
of use would allow the required program to be
delivered and failure to so would trigger default and
potential reversion of the property. | believe that
satisfies the use variance hardship test particularly
in the light of the nore flexible standards applied to

non-profit organizations serving the public need or

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

16

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealgross.com


https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N oo o B~ W N PP

N N NN NN P PP R R PR R PR
g A W N P O © 0O N O 0o M W N P O

public interest.

The third prong, with respect to the third
prong, | found allow ng the requested residential and
non-profit office use will not create substanti al
detrinment to the public good. The massing is
conpatible with the residential context and the
project will replace a |ong vacant structure with two
deeply affordable for sale units. | also agree with
the Ofice of Planning that, in fact, a by-right PDR
use woul d pose greater inpacts on the nei ghboring
residential properties.

Finally, the relief will not inpair the zone
plan particularly given that this square already
functions primarily as residential and that the future
| ane use map contenplates a m x of noderate density
uses in this location. As for the special exception,
t he Board consi ders whether the proposal creates
obj ectionable inpacts and is in harmng wth the
regulations. In this case, the ground floor non-
profit office is nodest in scale. The two dwelling
units are consistent with the residential block face
and the record shows that some shadi ng al ready exists
from permtted developnent in the area. Any
additional inpact fromthe proposed third story is

increnental and anticipated within the zone.

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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| think it's inportant to note that the
Applicant has voluntarily addressed the only
Identifiable effect by conpensating both the
nei ghbori ng honmeowner and the solar provider for the
full termof the solar project, even though the solar
installation are not protected by the PDR-1 zone. So,
| want to say genuinely | appreciate the Applicant's
effort to nake these things right with the property
owner next door and the solar provider. That's
reflected in Exhibit 35.

The project does not introduce any conpatible
use or intensity that conprom ses purpose or intent of
the regulations. | give great weight to the Ofice of
Pl anning's recommendation for approval. |[|'d also give
great weight to the witten report of the ANC 6C,
which is in support and states no issues or concerns.

|'I'l be voting in support of the application. Dr.
| manmur a?

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA: Thank you, M.
Chairman. |'min agreement wth your summary and
position on this and also want to comend the
Applicant for making both the nei ghbor whole as well
as the solar provider. | think that was pretty
generous and | think, as you stated before, this is

pretty straightforward given all the conditions and

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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(202) 234-4433

constraints and so | think this is going to lead to a

much better outcome. |'mprepared to vote in support.

Menber Drakeford?

like to reiterate that | amin support of, and align
nyself with the comments that you' ve provided and |I'm

also in support of this application.

much. Wth that, I'd like to nmake a notion to approve
Application No. 21381 as read and captioned by the
Secretary and ask for a second. Board Menber

Dr akef ord?

made and seconded. Madam Secretary, would you pl ease

conduct a roll call vote?

notion to approve the application. Chairman Bl ake?

19

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you. Board

MEMBER DRAKEFCORD: Yes, | would just al so

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, thank you very

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: | second.
VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, the notion is

M5. MEHLERT: Please respond to the Chair's

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD:  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Dr. | manura?

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Staff will record the vote as 3

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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to O to 2 to approve Application No. 21381 on the
nmoti on made by Chairman Bl ake and seconded by Board

Menber Dr akeford.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you very nuch.

Let's see, Dr. lImanura, are you done now or do you

have anot her case with us?

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA: Yes, sir, that's

concludes ny tinme. Thank you, M. Chairnan.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, thank you very

much. Have a great day.

COW SSI ONER | MAMURA:  You t oo.

VI CE CHAlI RPERSON BLAKE: Welconme, Vice Ch
MIler.

COW SSI ONER M LLER: Good norni ng,

air

M.

Chai rman and Board Menber Drakeford and Keara. Good

to see you.
VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay. Mad
Secretary, could you call our next neeting session

agenda iten?

am

MS. MEHLERT: Next is Application No. 21384

of Adet okunbo Harrison. This is an application
pursuant to Subtitle X Section 901.2 for a speci al
exception under Subtitle E Section 207.5 to allow
rear wall of a sem -detached building to extend

further than 10 feet beyond the furthest rear wall

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.
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an adjoining principal residential building on an
adj acent property.

This is for a two-story rear addition to an
exi sting two-story sem -detached residential dwelling.
It's located in the RF1 zone at 630 Randol ph Street
NW Square 3233, Lot 77. This hearing was conpleted

on January 21st and the Board requested additional
information fromthe Applicant.

Participating are Chairman Blake, Board
Menber Drakeford and Conm ssioner M ler.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you, Madam
Secretary. As the Secretary pointed out, we have
revisited this case and postponed it because we had
sonme concerns rai sed by adjacent nei ghbors about sone
of the potential adverse inpacts, so we asked for sone
additional information. | think that's in the record
now. We've reviewed it.

Just to point out the Board is authorized to
grant the requested relief under Subtitle E Section
207.5 and pursuant to Subtitle X and Subtitle E, 5201,
i f applicable. Now, we spoke about this in the
hearing, but | want to just reiterate it and state it
one nore tinme. Because the project neets all the RF-1
di mensi onal standards other than the rear extension

provi sion and seeks no relief froml ot occupancy,
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porch, yards or pervious surface, it's the Board's
interpretation that Subtitle E 5201 is not

I ndependently applicable. So, the Board's approval is
subject to the general standards of X 91.2 which also
allows the Board to grant special relief, if inits
judgnent, the proposal is in harnony with the zoning
regul ati ons and does not intend to adversely affect

t he use of nei ghboring properties.

Now, having said that, the potential inpacts
typically eval uated under 5201, particularly Iight,
air and privacy are appropriately considered in X
901. 2B given the requested relief. So, it's not
totally inapplicable, it's just not independently
appl i cabl e.

Having said that, as | pointed out earlier,
the nearby residents raised a range of concerns, sone
rel ated to non-zoning issues, such as construction
quality, permtting history and structural conditions
whi ch are primarily outside  of t he Board's
jurisdiction. Oher issues related to site specific
zoning raised considerations including rear vyard
I nt rusion, l'ight, air, privacy and  visual
conpatibility, which are all duly relevant. So, while
a 27-foot rear addition is a fairly substanti al

addition, this is a deep ot and the project conplies
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wth all the applicable matter of right, devel opnent
standards of the zone, except the rear extension
limt,

Based on the record and the evidence in the
record, including the architectural plans, the
phot ogr aphs, the shadow studies and the testinony and
anal ysis provided by the Ofice of Planning; and,
given again that the project conplies with all the
devel opnent standards of the zone, which in itself
does suggest the absence of undue inpacts, | do
bel i eve that the proposed addition will be in harnmony
w th the general purpose and intent of the zoning
regulations and will not tend to adversely affect the

use of nei ghboring properties.

Now, |'m not suggesting that there will be no

| npacts on the abutting property to the east because
there wll be. However, the record shows that those

i npacts will not be unduly adverse or materially
greater or nore intrusive than that which would result
froma matter of right addition extending 10 feet
beyond the adjoining rear wall. | think this

conclusion is certainly supported by the analysis

provi ded by the O fice of Planning, which I found both

I nformative and hel pful.

| would also give great weight to the Ofice
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of Planning's recommendation for approval and |I'd al so
give great weight to the witten report of ANC 4C,

whi ch supports the application and states no issues or
concerns. So, I'll be voting in support of the
application. Conmm ssioner Mller?

COW SSI ONER M LLER: Thank you, M.
Chairman. | appreciate all of your analysis which is,
as al ways, very conprehensive and | appreciate the
Appl i cant having provided since our |ast neeting or
hearing on this providing the photographs show ng the
ot her extensions on the block and the shadow st udy
that was also provided. | also was hoping that there
woul d be an illustrative rendering that would show the

rel ati onship between the Applicant's property and the
adj acent property owned by Chavis WIllians and | al so
was hoping that there would be sonmething submtted in
the record showi ng sone attenpt at dial ogue between
t he nei ghbors and maybe sonme acconmodati on being abl e
to be reached.

It is a very substantial addition. W did
not get an illustrative rendering. | think it
probably is the case that nobst of those extensions
were done on that block before the 10 foot rule. It
Is a deep lot as you said, but | know we're only three

peopl e and we have to decide. W three, at |east,
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have to agree and we're down a coupl e of BZA nenbers,
so I"'mhesitant to delay this further but | really
woul d appreciate an illustrative rendering show ng the
rel ationship of the proposed addition and what it

m ght | ook |ike conpared to the adjacent properties

al so shown in that rendering. | would like to hear if
t here have been any attenpts to conmuni cate and have
di al ogue with their next door neighbor. So, at this
point, | still have sonme concerns, so I'msorry to

report that to you, but that's where | amright now

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, thank you, M.

Vice Chair. Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: Thank you and | have
reviewed sonme of the additional materials that the
Applicant provided and | believe as Vice Chair Mller
I ndi cated, in our previous neeting or hearing with the
Applicant, one of the main things that we did request
or did suggest was that there was sone type of
addi tional outreach done with the adjacent property
owner as part of this conversation. So, while | also
woul d not like to delay this matter, | do think that
seei ng sone additional evidence that denonstrates ways
i n which the Applicant may have di scussed or expl ored
wth the adjacent property owner woul d al so be hel pful

I n seeing that.
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| did have sone questions about sone of the
precedent images that were submtted and just ensuring
that they are consistent wwth sone of the proposals or
wth the proposed addition that the Applicant is
proposing for the site.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay. |Is there any
additional information that you woul d need to nmake
your decision or are you a yes? | want to make sure |
under st and exactly where you are.

MEMBER DRAKEFCRD: Yes, sorry, | think as
Vice Chair Mller indicated, | wuld also be
Interested in seeing that there was at | east sone
attenpt to communicate with the adjacent property
owner as we expressed in our previous hearing wth the
Appl i cant.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, all right.

So, again, we look |ike we do not have three votes in
either direction, so | think what we can do is |I'd
like to open the record to allow the Applicant to
submt sone additional rendering, is that exactly what
you want, board nenbers?

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Yes, M. Chairnman, an
illustrative rendering that shows the proposed
addition and the relationship wth the adjacent

property owner that opposes it.
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VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, well that's
what we'd |ike to have. Madam Secretary, |'mgoing to
need your help with this.

COMWM SSI ONER M LLER:  And | agree with Board
Menber Drakeford that just sone evidence that there
had been an attenpt at conmunication between the two
nei ghbors, who have been living next to each other for
along tinme and may continue to for a long tine.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: kay. Well, it's
going to be -- | agree with you there. | think we can
definitely get the renderings and if you'd like to
have some commentary about that then we can get sone
conmment ary about how they may have reached out to each
ot her, but we certainly cannot now neddle in those
personal affairs, although we do have a good nei ghbor
policy which woul d encourage conmuni cation between
nei ghbors, so | would again stress that | agree with
you on that.

Madam Secretary, can you give us a sense of
the tine frame that you have available for us to do
this?

MS. MEHLERT: Would you like to nove that for
a post poned decision on the 25th?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Yes, I'd like to

conme back for a postponed decision on the 25th and |
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woul d I'ike to have the record reopened only for the
renderings that were requested by the board and that's
all. We'll nake a decision at that tine.

MS. MEHLERT: Ckay, if the Applicant could
submt by next Wednesday, February 18th and then if
there's any response fromthe ANC to get the seven
days by the 25th you could do that, unless you want to
wai ve that seven-day response period and give them
until the 20th for the Applicant.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Let's waive that
seven-day. | want to nake sure we get it back here on
t he 25t h.

MS. MEHLERT: (kay, so we can have any
filings from the Applicant due by next Friday,
February 20t h.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Perfect.

MS. MEHLERT: kay.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you very much.

Al right, want to call our next neeting agenda item
and thank you very nuch, Vice Chair.

COMWM SSI ONER M LLER:  Thank you, have a great
day. Have a good rest of your day. Thank you.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you. It's
going to be a | ong one.

COW SSI ONER M LLER:  Good | uck.
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VI CE CHAlI RPERSON BLAKE: (Ckay, woul d you cal
our next neeting session itenf

MS. MEHLERT: Yes, next in the Board's
meeting agenda is an expedited review. Application
No. 21421 of
Martin A Price, Trustee and Sandra L. Velvel,
Tr ust ee. This is a self-certified application
pursuant to Subtitle X Section 901.2 for a special
exception under Subtitle D Section 5201, and on the
rear yard requirements Subtitle D Section 207. 1.

This is for a one-story rear addition, to an
exi sting, detached, three-story plus cellar, principal
dwelling. It's located in the R 1A zone at 4928
| ndi an Lane NW Square 1512, Lot 13.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: (Ckay, thank you very
much, Madam Secretary. This Applicant proposes to
construct a one-story rear dwelling in the western
portion of a detached three-story dwelling. That
addition wll reduce the depth of a portion of the
rear yard to 11.6 feet, but because the RA-1 zone
requires a mninumof a 25-foot rear yard, the
Applicant is seeking a special exception relief from
the rear yard requirenents of Subtitle D Section 207
pursuant to Subtitle D, 5201 and Subtitle X, 901. 2.

This special exception standard is fairly
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straightforward and the Applicant has to prove that
the addition will not have a substantial adverse
effect on nei ghboring properties, particularly with
regard to light and air, privacy and visual
conpatibility.

The Applicant nust al so denonstrate that the
proposal is consistent with the purpose and intent of
the zoning regulations. So, | reviewed the
application and | believe that the Applicant has net
t he burden of proof. The subject property is a |arge
interior |lot of approximately 14,000 plus square feet.

This is a one-story rear addition that conplies with
all the applicable mtter of right devel opnent
standards, except for the requested rear yard relief
including lot area, lot wdth, height, no nore
stories, side yards, |ot occupancy and parking. |
bel i eve that the plans, photographs, shadow studies
are in the record and denonstrate that the addition
wi Il not unduly affect the light, air, privacy of
nei ghboring properties, especially when you take into
consideration the additions limted height, it's
| ocation in the rear of the building and the screening
provided by the existing fencing and mature
| andscaping. O course, the addition is designed to

match the materials and architectural character of the
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exi sting house so the addition should not
substantially visually intrude upon the character,
scale and pattern of devel opnent al ong I ndian Lane.

Taking these factors into consideration, |
believe the granting of the request for relief wll
not tend to adversely affect neighboring properties
and it is in harnmony with the general purpose and
intent of the zoning regulations. | agree with the
Ofice of Planning' s analysis and give great weight to
Its recommendation for approval. | also give great
wei ght to the witten report of ANC 3D which is in
support and states no issues or concerns. |'d also
note that DDOT has no objection to the project. 'l
be voting in support. Conmm ssion Stidhanf?

COW SSI ONER STI DHAM  Thank you, | think |
agree. This is fairly straightforward and | really
don't have anything to add to what you al ready
mentioned. | think you' ve covered it all and I'm
prepared to support as well.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you. Board
Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: Yes, Chair Bl ake, | also
appreci ate your thorough analysis of the application
and also | am prepared to support, | have no

obj ect i on.
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VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay. |I'Ill neke a
notion to approve Application No. 21421 as read and
captioned by the Secretary and ask for a second.
Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: | second.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay. The notion
has been nmade and seconded. Madam Secretary, woul d
you pl ease conduct the roll call vote?

M5. MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
notion to approve the application. Chairman Bl ake?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD:  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: Conm ssioner Stidhan?

COW SSI ONER STI DHAM  Yes.

M5. MEHLERT: The staff will record the vote
as 3 to 0Oto 2 to approve Application No. 21421 on the
noti on made by Chai rman Bl ake and seconded by Board
Menber Drakeford.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you, Madam
Secretary. Whuld you call our next neeting session
matter?

MS. MEHLERT: Next is expedited review
Application No. 21422 of Christine Cheu and Brian

Rowe. This is a self-certification application
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pursuant to Subtitle X Section 901.2 for a speci al
exception, under Subtitle E Section 5201 fromthe | ot
occupancy requirenents, of Subtitle E Section 210. 1.

This for a one story rear addition to an
existing attached two-story wth basenent principal
dwelling. It's located in the RF-1 zone at 1529 A
Street NE, Square 1070, Lot 54.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you, Madam
Secretary. As the Secretary pointed out, in this
project the Applicant proposes to denolish an existing
rear deck and encl ose storage area and construct a
smal | er, uncovered deck with a cellar-1evel rear
addition on an existing attached single famly row
house in the RF-1 zone.

The project requires special exenption relief
fromthe | ot occupancy standard. It would actually
result in a reduction in ot occupancy from 71 percent
to 66 percent, bringing the property within the
maxi mum perm tted by special exception. Al the other
adj oining requirenents are net.

The application can be approved pursuant to E
5201 and the general standards. Again, this is
basically a special exception standard which again the
Appl i cant nmust prove that this does not substantially

adversely affect the neighboring properties wth
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regard to light and air, privacy and visual intrusion
and al so denonstrate conpliance with the -- that the
project is consistent wth the appropriate zoning

regul ati ons.

| have reviewed the case record including the

Applicant's statenent and the O fice of Planning's
report, the report of ANC 7D and the letter fromthe
Capitol Hill Restoration Society. |'ve |ooked over
the plans and | believe that the Applicant has net the
burden of proof to be granted the request for relief.
The proposed deck is uncovered and unencl osed which
m nimzes shadow and air flow inpacts and the site of
the |l evel enclosure does not affect light or air. The
deck is flush with the rear wall of the property to
the east and does not introduce any site lines. The
deck is visible fromthe alley, but there are decks
and other additions that are very comon there. It
should not result in any substantial adverse inpact on
nei ghboring properties with regard to light, air,
privacy or visual character. | believe that the
project is in harmony with the zoning regul ations as
It reduces a non-conformng condition and is
consistent with the RF-1 and nei ghbor hood devel opnment
patterns.

| do agree with the O fice of Planning's

Neal R. Gross and Co., Inc.

(202) 234-4433 Washington DC www.nealgross.com



https://nealrgross.com/

© 00 N O o A W DN

N R N I T N R S e N R N T o o
o b~ W N b O © 00 N oo 0o~ N+ O

anal ysis and give great weight to its recommendation
for approval. | also would give great weigh to the
witten report of ANC 7D which is in support and
states no issues or concerns. | wll also note that
there is no community opposition and that the Capitol
Hi Il Restoration Society is in support, so I'll be
voting in support of the application. Conmm ssion

St i dhan?

COVM SSI ONER STI DHAM Wl |, you' re mnaki ng
this very easy for me comng after you for sure,
because you're covering really all of the high points.

| too went over the record and gave great weight to
OP and the ANC. | really have nothing to add to your
analysis. | think it's spot on and will also be
voting in support.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you. Fighting
words will be appreciated. Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFCRD: Yes, | also align nyself
wth the cooments that you've provided and wll just
note that | appreciate that this particul ar project
w Il also help the property becone nore in conformance
or at least nore closely aligned with the regul ations
in the zoning code. | also am in support and wll be
voting in support of this application.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, thank you.
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Wth that, |'d like to nake a notion to approve
Application No. 21422 as read and captioned by the
Secretary and ask for a second. Board Menber
Dr akef or d?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: | second.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, the nmotion is
made and seconded. Madam Secretary, woul d you pl ease
conduct a roll call vote?

MS. MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
nmotion to approve the application. Chairman Bl ake?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Conm ssioner Stidhanf

COW SSI ONER STI DHAM  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: The staff would record the vote
as 3 to 0to 2 to approve Application No. 21422 on the
nmoti on made by Chairman Bl ake and seconded by Board
Menber Drakef ord.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you, Madam
Secretary. Let's see is there anything else? Wuld
you call the next itemon our agenda? 1Is this the end
for the hearing session or neeting session? Were are
we?

MS. MEHLERT: Yes, there is one nore
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application in the neeting session.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay, woul d you cal
t hat, please?

MS. MEHLERT: Yes, next is another expedited
review, Application No. 21407 of M chael and N cole
Mural i .

This is an application pursuant to Subtitle X Section
901.2 for a special exception under Subtitle D Section
5201 fromthe rear yard requirenments of Subtitle D
Section 207.1. This is for a rear deck

addition with grade on the first floor of an existing,
attached principal dwelling. It's located in the R 3
zone at 1325 Sheridan Street NW Square 2788, Lot 91.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: In this application,
t he Applicant proposes to construct an open, uncovered
rear deck with stairs to an existing two-story row
house in the R-3 zone. The deck would extend 16 feet
into the rear yard | eaving a 14-foot rear yard where
20 feet is required and therefore requires a special
exenption relief wunder Subtitle D Section 207,
pursuant to Subtitle D, 5201 and Subtitle X, 901.2.

As we tal ked about before, under this special
exception standard, the Applicant nust show that the
proposed addition wll not have a substantially

adverse effect on the neighboring properties,
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particularly with regard to light, air, privacy and
visual conpatibility with the character, scale and
pattern of developnent in the area and the Applicant
must al so denonstrate that the proposal is consistent
wth the purpose and intent of the zoning regulations.
| believe the Applicant has net the burden of
proof. The subject property is located in an interior
| ot that is substandard in |ot area and wdth. The
Appl i cant proposes to construct an open, uncovered
rear deck with stairs measuring approximately 16 x 16
| ocated on the first floor |evel.
Except for the requested rear yard relief,
t he proposed project conplies wth all the applicable
matter of right developnment standards including
hei ght, nunber of stories, |ot occupancy, use and
par ki ng and given the deck's open design, |ack of
wal I's or roof, nodest height conbined and factoring in
the shadowing caused by existing buildings and
fencing, the light and air available to the
nei ghboring properties should not be unduly affected.
The existing fencing and spatial separation
limt direct views and so the privacy of neighboring
properties should not be unduly conprom sed and
because there are rear decks of simlar size, height

and design along the alley, the proposed deck shoul d
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not substantially visually intrude upon the character,
scal e or pattern of devel opnent along the alley.

Consi dering these factors, | believe the
granting of relief will not tend to adversely affect
t he use of neighboring property and would be in
harnmony with the general purpose and intent of zoning
regul ations. | agree with the analysis provided by
the Ofice of Planning and give great weight to its
recommendati ons for approval.

|'d al so give great weight to the witten
report of ANC 4A which is in support and states no
i ssues or concerns.

| will also note that DDOT has no objection
to the application. | will be voting in favor of this
application as well. Comm ssioner Stidhanf?

COW SSI ONER STI DHAM  Thank you. Agai n,
this one is very straightforward. | also give great
weight to the Ofice of Planning's analysis and the
ANC s support. | really don't have anything to add to
what you' ve already said and am prepared to support.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Thank you. Board
Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: Yes, | have no objections
to this particular matter and will also be prepared

to vote in support.
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VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Ckay. |1'll make a
nmotion to approve Application No. 21407 as read and
captioned by the Secretary and ask for a second.

Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD: | second.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: (kay. The notion is
made and seconded. Madam Secretary, woul d you pl ease
conduct a roll call vote?

MS. MEHLERT: Pl ease respond to the Chair's
nmotion to approve the application. Chairman Bl ake?

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Board Menber Drakeford?

MEMBER DRAKEFORD:  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: Conm ssioner Stidhanf

COW SSI ONER STI DHAM  Yes.

MS. MEHLERT: The staff would record the vote
as 3 to 0to 2 to approve Application No. 21407 on the
nmoti on made by Chairman Bl ake and seconded by Board
Menber Drakef ord.

VI CE CHAI RPERSON BLAKE: Excell ent, thank
you, Madam Secretary. | guess that's the easy part.
| guess we can proceed now to the hearing session.
Wul d you pl ease call our first hearing?

(Wher eupon, the above-entitled nmatter went

off the record at 10:26 a.m)
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CERTI FI CATE

This is to certify that the foregoing transcript was
duly recorded and accurately transcri bed under ny
direction; further, that said transcript is a true and
accurate record of the proceedings; and that | am

neit her counsel for, related to, nor enployed by any
of the parties to this action in which this matter was
taken; and further that | amnot a relative nor an
enpl oyee of any of the parties nor counsel enployed by
the parties, and | amnot financially or otherw se

interested in the outcone of the action.

G Wl ik

Christina Allegra Chilstrom
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